MINUTES of a meeting of the CABINET held in the Board Room, Council Offices, Whitwick Road, Coalville, LE67 3FJ on TUESDAY, 28 FEBRUARY 2023

Present: Councillor R Ashman (in the Chair)

Councillors R D Bayliss, T Gillard, K Merrie MBE, N J Rushton and A C Woodman

Officers: Ms A Thomas, Mr J Arnold, Mr A Barton, Mr G Hammons, K Hiller, Mr C Elston, Ms R Haynes and Mr I Nelson

71. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Councillor R Blunt submitted apologies and Councillor R Ashman took the Chair in his absence.

72. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS

There were no interests declared.

73. PUBLIC QUESTION AND ANSWER SESSION

No questions were received.

74. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January were considered.

It was moved by Councillor R Bayliss, seconded by Councillor T Gillard and

RESOLVED THAT

The minutes of the meeting held on 31 January be confirmed as an accurate record of proceedings.

75. CASTLE DONINGTON CONSERVATION AREA: ADOPTION OF CHARACTER APPRAISAL AND BOUNDARY REVIEW

The Planning Portfolio Holder presented the report and wished to thank officers and Castle Donington Parish Council Planning Committee for all their hard work.

It was highlighted that dividing the conservation area as per the recommendations would reflect not only the historic development of the settlement but also the varying functions of the different parts of the settlement, for instance the primary shopping area would fall within the proposed "Castle Donington" conservation area as opposed to the "High Street" area.

It was noted that a public consultation on the draft character and boundary review had been undertaken and had received a significant response, as well as responses received from both the Parish Council and Historic England and that these had shaped the recommendations.

A member wished to note that this had been a good piece of work and that Castle Donington was a precious place, worthy of conservation.

It was moved by Councillor K Merrie, seconded by Councillor R Bayliss and

RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The division of the existing conservation area into the "Castle Donington" and "High Street" conservation areas be approved by Cabinet.
- 2. The character appraisal and boundary review for the "Castle Donington" conservation area be adopted.
- 3. Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director in consultation with the Portfolio Holder to make any necessary non-material amendments to character appraisal and boundary review documents as and when necessary.

76. FIRST HOMES INTERIM POLICY STATEMENT

The Planning Portfolio Holder presented the report and outlined the principles behind the new type of discounted market sale housing, designed to help first-time buyers. It was stated that in response to the consultation, some suggested changes to the Interim Position Statement had been made.

It was noted that officers from both planning and housing would be dealing with the first First Homes in the district as part of the redevelopment of the former Arla Dairies site in Ashby de la Zouch.

A member suggested that this would be a useful step given that the maximum eligible income for the scheme would be £80,000 per annum and that this would be affordable on a £250,000 property as proposed in the scheme.

It was moved by Councillor K Merrie, seconded by Councillor R Bayliss and

RESOLVED THAT:

- 1. The First Homes Interim Position Statement in Appendix A be approved by Cabinet.
- 2. Authority be delegated to the Head of Planning and Infrastructure, the Head of Housing and the Head of Legal and Commercial Services to administer the First Homes scheme.
- 3 Authority be delegated to the Strategic Director in consultation with the Portfolio Holder to make any necessary minor amendments to the Interim Position Statement.

77. RESPONSE TO GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION: LEVELLING-UP AND REGENERATION BILL: REFORMS TO NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY

The Planning Portfolio Holder presented the report and summarised officers' suggestions in response to the Government's consultation on the National Planning Policy Framework and other potential changes to the planning system. It was noted that some of these suggested changes would have the potential to impact on the new Local Plan which the Council is preparing and also on how planning applications are determined.

A member wished to thank the team for the work which had gone into this consultation response and also wished to remind the meeting that at present this was something which was only in the consultation stages.

It was moved by Councillor K Merrie, seconded by Councillor A Woodman and

RESOLVED THAT:

The Consultation in respect of the Levelling-Up and Regeneration Bill: reforms to national planning policy be responded to by Cabinet as per the report at Appendix A.

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm

The Chairman closed the meeting at 5.12 pm